
1 
 

Jackson Township Board of Zoning Appeals 

Meeting Minutes 

May 14, 2015 

Members present:   Leon Vitale-recused from appeal #2230 
   Daniel Creighton 
   Edward McDonnell 
   Charles Rohr 
 
Absent Members: Patrick Snyder 
   Richard Lutz 
 
5:30 PM Appeal #2298 – HC Klover Architect, 10955 Lowell Ave. Ste. 700, Overland Park, KJ 66210 agent 

for BRE DDR Belden Park LLC, property owner, 3300 Enterprise Parkway, Beachwood, Ohio 44122 

requests a variance for a zero (0) ft. front (west) parking setback with no landscaping where a 20 ft. 

front parking setback is required with landscaping per Art. IV Sect. 411.8 & 411.9 of the zoning 

resolution.  Property located at parcel 10005744 Dressler NW, Sect. 24NE Jackson Twp. Zoned B-3.  

Mr. Vitale read the file application and contents of the file. 

Mr. Vitale swore in Jason Stucker, HC Klover Architect, 10955 Lowell Ave., Ste. 700, Overland Park, KJ. 

Mr. Stucker explained they are asking for a variance for the parking and landscaping setback so they can 

maintain the existing standards that are currently there and the parking will line up with those in the 

area.  The building will meet the required setbacks.  They will have a drive thru window for the 

restaurant.  They could move everything back but they prefer to leave everything closer to the street so 

the so they are not blocked by the other buildings and they plan to utilize some of the parking that is 

there with a cross access agreement.  They have approval from RPC based on obtaining the variance. 

Mr. McDonnell asked if the building could be moved back. 

Mr. Stucker stated yes because there is plenty of land behind them.  Mr. Stucker stated Chick-Fil-A has 

parking right up to the street but they are on the opposite side of the street.  His concern is visibility. 

Mr. McDonnell asked if the primary reason for the variance is a marketing issue. 

Mr. Stucker stated yes and secondary is the environmental impact of site disturbance. 

Mr. Creighton asked if the existing strip of grass would stay. 

Mr. Stucker stated yes. 

Mr. Rohr stated it appears that there is 20 ft. of grass strip now. 

Mr. Stucker stated that the setback goes from the property line and the property line is where the 

existing curb for the parking area is now. 

Mr. McDonnell asked if they would not be adding any green space along the area that currently abuts 

Dressler. 

Mr. Stucker stated that is correct but they will have landscaping within the property. 

No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to the appeal. 

Mr. Vitale closed he appeal to public input. 



2 
 

Mr. McDonnell stated he heard from the applicant that this is a marketing decision and they could meet 

the regulations but prefer not to adhere to them.  He is not in favor of the appeal. 

Mr. Creighton stated he does not see a practical difficulty. 

Mr. Vitale stated he understands they will be a little blocked due to the other buildings but it was stated 

that they could move everything back, but it would have a little impact on the parking lot.  They have 

rules that need to be followed and he has a problem with it because it was stated that it is more of a 

marketing issue than anything else. 

Mr. McDonnell made a motion to approve appeal #2298 as requested. 

Mr. Creighton seconded the motion. 

The vote was: Mr. Rohr-no, Mr. Creighton-no, Mr. McDonnell-no and Mr. Vitale-no. 

Mr. Vitale stated the appeal has been denied.  They can come back before the board with a different 

request to work something out or they can appeal the decision to the court of common pleas within 30 

days. 

5:45 PM Appeal #2299 – Tobin Construction Company, 7694 Strausser NW, North Canton, Ohio 44720 

agent for Classic “A” Properties, Inc., 41601 Dunlap Drive Belmont, Ohio 43718 request a variance for 18 

ft. 11 in. between dwellings located at 9042 Canal Place and 9030 Canal Place NW where 20 ft. is 

required per Sect. 431.6K(1)(b) of the zoning resolution, Sect. 29SW, Jackson Twp. Zoned R-2.  

Mr. Vitale read the application and contents of the file. 

Mr. Vitale asked who wanted to speak in favor of the appeal. 

Mr. Vitale swore in Fred Tobin, 7694 Strausser NW, North Canton, Ohio. 

Mr. Tobin stated they designed the home and had it staked out perfectly with 5 inches to play with.  

They always do a two foot over dig.  The contractor was told exactly where to put the house but when 

the inspector checked the setbacks after the house was constructed it was found to be 13 inches away 

from the other home where 20 ft. is required.  It is a little over 20 ft. on the other side.  This is the first 

time this has become an issue and he is trying to correct it with a variance. 

No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to the appeal. 

Mr. Vitale closed the appeal to public input. 

Mr. Vitale stated it was just a mistake and he doesn’t think they tried to cheat to get an extra few 

inches.  It was an honest mistake.  He has no objection to the variance. 

Mr. McDonnell agreed with Mr. Vitale.  He had no problem with the variance. 

Mr. Creighton made a motion to approve appeal #2299 as requested. 

Mr. Rohr seconded the motion. 

The vote was: Mr. Rohr-yes, Mr. Creighton-yes, Mr. McDonnell-yes and Mr. Vitale-yes. 

 

 



3 
 

6:00 PM Appeal #2300 – Dean Olivieri, agent for Fred Olivieri Construction Co. property owner, 6315 

Promway NW, N. Canton, OH requests a variance for a 14 ft. 6 in. north and 9 ft. 2 in. south setback for 

principal building where 25 ft. is required per Art.. IV Sect. 411.5 of the zoning resolution.  Property 

located at 6315 Promway NW, Sect. 13NE Jackson Twp. Zoned I-1. 

Mr. Vitale recused from appeal #2230. 

Mr. Creighton read the file application and contents of the file. 

Mr. Creighton asked who wanted to speak in favor of the appeal. 

Mr. Creighton swore in Dean Olivieri, 6315 Promway NW. 

Mr. Olivieri explained that the building is currently there and they just want to add an addition to keep 

in line with the existing building. 

Mr. Creighton asked if the new addition is 44 ft. long. 

Mr. Olivieri stated yes.  It will be the same width as the existing building.  Mr. Olivieri explained the 

business use and stated the plan has been reviewed by the fire department and they are okay with it. 

Mr. McDonnell asked what the square foot is of the proposed addition. 

Mr. Olivieri stated it is about 13,300 sq. ft. 

Mr. McDonnell asked why they can’t decrease the width of the building to meet the setbacks. 

Mr. Olivieri stated that would not give them the space they need to operate.  The original building was 

built approximately in 1973.  He doesn’t know what the regulations were at that time. 

No one else spoke in favor of the appeal and no one spoke in opposition to the appeal. 

Mr. Creighton closed the appeal to public input. 

Mr. Creighton stated considering the area in which the building is located, it is in line with the existing 

building and there is no objection from the fire departments so he has no objection to the variance. 

Mr. McDonnell stated Mr. Oliver’s testimony was that he believes the building was built around 1973 

and no variances were required.  The current structure is non-conforming and they can expand it by 25% 

without any action by the board.  He doesn’t have a problem with the variance. 

Mr. Rohr made a motion to approve appeal #2300 as requested. 

Mr. McDonnell seconded the motion. 

The vote was: Mr. Rohr-yes, Mr. Creighton-yes, and Mr. McDonnell-yes. 

Mr. McDonnell made a motion to adjourn the meeting and Mr. Rohr seconded the motion. 

The vote was: Mr. Rohr-yes, Mr. Creighton-yes, Mr .McDonnell-yes and Mr. Vitale-yes. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Joni Poindexter 

Zoning Inspector 


